ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 17, 2008
3:37 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Bill W el echowski
Senat or Thomas Wagoner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Bert Stedman, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 214
"An Act relating to big gane hunting by nonresident nenbers of
the mlitary service and their dependents; and providing for an
effective date.”

MOVED CSSB 214(RES) OUT OF COW TTEE

Confirmati on Heari ngs
Board of Gane
Ted. H Spraker - Sol dotna
Lewi s E. Bradley
Craig L. Fleener
CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

Board of Fisheries
WIlliam$S. Brown
John E. Jensen
Melvin E. Morris

POSTPONED

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 214
SHORT TITLE:. HUNTI NG BY MEMBERS OF THE M LI TARY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) HUGG NS

01/ 16/ 08 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/08
01/ 16/ 08 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- March 17, 2008



01/ 16/ 08 (S) RES

02/ 27/ 08 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 27/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 27/ 08 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 10/ 08 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 10/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 10/ 08 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 17/ 08 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

JODY SI MPSON

Staff to Senator Huggi ns

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ained CSSB 214 (RES) version E for the
sponsor.

KRI STI N WRI GHT, Super vi sor

Fi nance Licensing

Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding CSSB 214 (RES).

KEVI N SAXBY

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on CSSB 214(RES).

FRANK BI SHOP, representing hinself
Kodi ak, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 214.

BOBBY FI TH AN

Pr of essi onal Hunters Associ ati on

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported CSSB 214(RES), version E

BRUCE KNOALES, representing hinself

Wasilla, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported CSSB 214( RES).
TOM LOGAN, representing hinself

Bi g Lake, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported CSSB 214( RES).

TED H. SPRAKER

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 17, 2008



Sol dot na, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Reappoi ntee to the Board of Gane.

LEW S E. BRADLEY
Pal mer, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Nom nee for the Board of Gane

CRAI G L. FLEENER
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Nom nee for the Board of Gane.

WADE W LLIS, representing hinself

No address provided

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported M. Fleener and opposed M.
Br adl ey.

BRUCE KNOALES, Chair

Susitna River Fish and Gane Advisory Committee

Wl ow, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Had not been notified of neeting.

PAUL SHADURA

Kenai / Sol dot na Fi sh and Gane Advi sory Conmittee
Kenai, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported M. Spraker.

STEVE RUNYAN, representing self

Wasi |l a, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported M. Bradley, M. Fleener and M.
Spr aker .

Rl CKY GEASE, representing hinself

Kenai, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported M. Spraker, M. Fleener and M.
Br adl ey.

GARY HOLLI ER, representing hinself
Sol dot na, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported M. Spraker for reconfirmation.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGA NS called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:37:37 PM Present at the call to
order were Senators Geen, Stevens, Welechowski, Wgoner and
Huggi ns.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 17, 2008



SB 214- HUNTI NG BY MEMBERS CF THE M LI TARY

3:38:16 PM
CHAI R HUGGE NS announced SB 214 to be up for consideration

JODY SIMPSON, staff to Senator Huggins, sponsor of SB 214, said
there was a new CS, version E that she hoped acconplished the
goals of the sponsor. It provides for mlitary and Coast Guard
menbers and their dependents, it waives the 12-nonth waiting
period that is required currently in statute for themto be able
to pay resident rates, it accords resident rate fees for permts
and tags and it addresses Senator MQ@uire's concerns about going

back to the original |anguage of the bill. This CS does that
and does it wthout qualifying them under other areas of the
statute as residents. They are still defined as non-residents.

It al so addresses Senator Wagoner’s concerns in that it doesn't
open up the dip-netting and personal use fisheries for these
folks until they have been here for a year. An email from Kevin
Saxby, Departnent of Law (DOL), confirnms that. She said it also
addresses the <concerns of the Alaska Professional Hunters’
Associ ation and others by retaining the guide conponent for the
t hree nost danger ous speci es.

3:40: 11 PM

SENATOR STEVENS said he appreciated all the work that went into
this issue and he asked if this would include the wuniform
mlitary and the Corps of Engi neers.

CHAIR HUGA NS answered yes as they are a branch of the U S.
Arny.

SENATOR STEVENS said he was thinking of the wuniform nedica
corps in the BIA

CHAIR HUGE NS said they are not covered by this bill

3:41: 28 PM

KRI STIN WRI GHT, Supervisor, Finance Licensing, Alaska Departnment
of Fish and Gane (ADF&G), relative to Senator Stevens’ question,
explained that the BIA and other groups, if they are not
considered as part of the mlitary on a certain federal
regi ster, they are not considered mlitary.

SENATOR STEVENS said his concern is that the Coast @uard is

under the Departnent of Honeland Security and it's their
intention to cover them

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- March 17, 2008



CHAIR HUGA NS said they are covered specifically in the bill. He
asked if M. Wight saw any challenges in admnistering this
change.

M5. WRI GHT answer ed no.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI asked if sonmeone from ADF&G coul d comment
on whether this |egislation would inpact the nunbers of fish and
wildlife available to residents.

M5. WRIGHT answered they already pay the resident rate for the
fishing license now, but at issue is the hunting |icense. Very
few have participated in hunting, but it’s possible that nore
mlitary mght hunt under this bill because the |icenses would
cost less than what they would have been paying. The fiscal note
woul d al ways be a guess.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he supports the bill, but they have a
constitutional obligation to mandate for sustainable resource
and that’s what he's getting at. He asked if she anticipated
that these provisions would have a significant inpact on that
mandat e.

M5. WRIGHT replied that these people would still be considered
non-residents and wouldn’t be able to participate in the
personal use fisheries wuntil they have nmet the one-year

residency requirenment. They are already doing that.

3:44:. 42 PM
KEVI N SAXBY, Departnment of Law (DOL), said he was available to
answer questions.

SENATOR MCGUI RE j oi ned the conmmttee.

3:45: 24 PM

FRANK BI SHOP, conbat veteran, Kodiak, said he had been a
resident of Alaska for the past 37 years and he disagreed wth
SB 214. He thought they were trying to nmake a special status of
citizen. At the present tine all the mlitary are voluntary and
this would have a drastic inpact on the econony of the |ocal
popul ation that nmakes their living from non-residents.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said requiring a guide for the big species in the
first year would continue, so you still need a guide for brown
bear and goat hunting. The other part is that the difference in
some of the professions and vocations is that mlitary people

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 17, 2008



are sent here on orders; it my be they want to conme or they
don’t want to cone, but they don’t have a choice. A lot of young
men and wonen are comng to Alaska for a matter of nonths and
then shipping out to lraq or Afghanistan, and some of them don’t
conme back. He characterized it as being good hosts for young
people who are really making a sacrifice for the country
potentially. He concluded by thanking him for his years of
service in being a conbat veteran

3:49: 01 PM

BOBBY FITHI AN, Professional Hunters Association, supported SB
214, version E. He said they appreciated the sponsor worKking
with themto delete sections 2 and 3 that dealt with the guide-
requi red speci es.

3:49: 54 PM
BRUCE KNOWES, representing hinself, Mit-Su, said he is a
di sabl e veteran and he loved this bill. He said that people who

don’t understand the mlitary and those who have been away from
it for years <cannot understand today’s mlitary and the
sacrifices these people are naking. He has a son in the mlitary
and he said, “These people deserve everything we can give them”
The fact that they won't be able to participate in the persona

use fisheries is short sighted, but that’s how it worked out.

3:50: 51 PM

TOM LOGAN, representing hinself, Big Lake, supported SB 214. He
related that he had personal experience with this issue. He was
transferred by the mlitary to Alaska quite a few years ago, and
the second day he was here he bought a non-resident hunting
license and didn't sign in to his base for 10 days. The next
year he used his non-resident hunting license to show that he
had been in Al aska over a year, although it was a year and two
days, and bought a regular hunting license. ADF&G tried to say
“no” because the mlitary said he didn't get here until 10 days
|ater. The department didn't want to accept his old license as
proof that he had been in Al aska 10 days before.

MR. LOGAN said a |ot of other young nen did the sane thing; they
came up early and hunted on a non-resident |icense and then
wound up paying a fine because they couldn’'t docunent they had
been here ahead of tine.

3:53:19 PM

SENATOR STEVENS noved to adopt CSSB 214(RES), version E, for
di scussion purposes. There were no objections and it was so
or der ed.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 17, 2008



3:54:20 PM

SENATOR STEVENS noved to report CSSB 214(RES), version E, from
committee with individual recomendations and zero fiscal notes.
There were no objections and it was so ordered.

3:54: 45 PM at ease 4:02:17 PM

Board of Gane Confirmation Hearings

CHAIR HUGA NS said the commttee next would hear from the
Governor’s nom nees to the Board of Gane.

4. 02: 26 PM

TED H. SPRAKER, nom nee for the Board of Gane, said he is a
current menber of the Board of Gane and al so serves on the Big
Game Commercial Services Board. He lives in Soldotna with his
wife and famly. He was raised in Womng where he went to the
University of Womng. He conpleted his bachelor’s degree in
wldlife managenent in 1971 and conpleted a nmaster’s degree in
range nmanagenent in 1973. He noved to Alaska in July 1973 and is
a 35-year resident and he is 59 years of age. He worked as a
wildlife biologist for ADF&G for 28 years and 4 nonths; he
retired in June 2002. In January 2003 he was appointed to the
Board of Ganme and was just recently reappointed to his third
term He has also served as the vice chair of the Board of Gane
for the last couple of years and holds the Board of Gane’s seat
on the Big Game Commerci al Services Board on which he has served
since it was established three years ago. The reason he wants to
remain on the board is that wildlife managenent and working wth
the public has been his life long career and he likes it.

CHAIR HUGE NS asked him to highlight a couple of contributions
he has nmade while on the board.

MR. SPRAKER answered said that one of his contributions that he
used his long career working for ADF&G to listen very carefully
to the scientific data that was presented. He was told |ong ago,
“As long as you |l ook after the resource and do the best you can
as far as mintaining healthy populations and healthy habitat
that you are always going to make the right decisions.” He also
tries to mx his scientific background with where the public
conmes into the equation. The board works as a team and he tries
his best to represent all users across the state.

CHAIR HUGGE NS asked what challenges he saw in the next 24
nont hs.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- March 17, 2008



4:08:19 PM

MR. SPRAKER answered that every year they are challenged by the
subsi stence mandate. The board has struggled with the Nelchina
caribou hunt issues in Unit 13. The Ahtna Corporation has not
been pleased wth sone of the board s subsistence outcones, even
t hought they have a good record on this issue across the state.
Another big issue is their desire to manage predators across the
state. He said they have a very clear nmandate to increase
popul ations in certain areas especially populations that are
depl et ed where subsi stence needs have not been net.

MR. SPRAKER said the residents of this state really deserve a
wel | -t hought out and long term program as far as nanaging
predators goes and he thought they had that. Recently the prey
popul ati on has responded well in MGath due to reducing wolves
and bears in that area.

4:11:14 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS said at a recent statew de organizational neeting
the departnment had presentations on intensive managenent and he
asked if intensive managenent had been a di scussion point on the
board - although he thought probably not. He then junped to
habitat and asked if there are any success stories or
conversations or debates he had been involved in that revolved
around the adequacy or the need to inprove habitat, particularly
as it mght apply to noose.

MR. SPRAKER answered there have been a I|ot of successful
prograns across the state with habitat, but unfortunately they
are always associated with wild fires, because npose habitat
requires a large anmount of |and. For that reason it’s
financially difficult to enhance habitat over |arge areas.
However, a good exanple of increased noose nunbers would be in
the Interior around and east of Fairbanks. The departnent has
responded to this increase by allowi ng harvesting of antlerless
nobose in sonme areas.

4:14: 22 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if things other than predators are
i npacting big gane ungul ates |i ke big gane hunters.

MR. SPRAKER answered it's rare that only one thing inpacts prey.
Basically three things kill npose - weather, predators and high
velocity lead, and the board can hel p balance things through its
allocation efforts. There is an issue wth sheep declining

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 17, 2008



across the state, but they are pretty sure it's not because of
hunters.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if there were any conflicts he m ght have in
his position on the board that they should know about.

MR. SPRAKER replied the only opposition to his reappointnent
cane from the Ahtna Corporation. He also had opposition because
of his stand on statewi de users and that he was in favor of a
salary cap on subsistence hunters in Unit 13; he also voted in
opposition to a proposal that would have elimnated all the
Fai rbanks tier 2 hunters in Unit 13 when the nunber of pernmts
was 2,000. He felt that was unfair to users across the state and
that the salary income was sonmething that was needed to better
characterize a subsistence user and neet the criteria they are
mandated to look at. Those two issues were in a letter in
opposition to his reappointnent.

MR. SPRAKER said he had also been criticized from a couple of
groups who are strongly opposed to nmanagenent of wolves,
al t hough he didn’'t know if they had witten any letters.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he received a couple of letters from
constituents about wolverine trapping east of Anchorage in
Chugach State Park. He asked himif he was going to relook into
the situation that had trapped about 12 wolverines and 6 dogs.
Sonme of the traps were right off of trails.

MR. SPRAKER replied that at the last board neeting they took a

very careful look at that and he offered an anmendnent that
addressed a 50-yard setback where traps and snares cannot be set
on either side of the trail. It provided also for a quarter-mle
setback from all the trailheads, canpgrounds and along the

Seward H ghway. Another part of that anendnent required al
trappers to identify their traps wth trap tags to show
ownership. He related that of the six dogs that were trapped
actually two were caught in the park and four were caught
outside of it. He said the board also reduced the length of the
trapping season by two weeks. He said they worked wth the
trappers to elinmnate sonme conflicts and he was sure it would
come back before them several tinmes until somethi ng changed.

4:22:01 PM

LEWS E. BRADLEY, nominee to the Board of Ganme, Mat-Su, said he
has been an Al askan resident for 35 years and enjoys the |ast
frontier lifestyle of hunting and fishing and working hard. He
wants the sane opportunities for his grandchildren and al

SENATE RES COW TTEE -9- March 17, 2008



Al askans. Qur state needs prudent nanagenent of our natural
resources that provides fair and equitable use on a sustainable
level. He said that no one person knows it all and we are all
Al askan and need to work together using know edge and experience
to make w se decisions to restore the abundance of fish and
wildlife where popul ati ons are decli ning.

He said he was born in Hot Springs, Arkansas, 62 years ago and
graduated from high school in Oregon in 1964. He got married in
1965 and cane to Alaska with the mlitary in 1967. He quipped
that he has sone negotiating experience - since he raised two
children. He was discharged in 1970 and got a Bachelor of
Sci ence degree in Physical Education in 1972. He wanted to cone
back to Al aska, but there were no jobs in physical education, so
he went an extra year and got a degree in elenmentary education
K-8. He taught in Wsilla for the last 27 years. He got a
private pilot’s license in 1985. He coached after-school sports
for 26 years and co-founded the Wsilla Little Dribblers
Basketball Programw th Reed Smith

4:26: 01 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked if he had any success in picking up antlers
this winter.

MR. BRADLEY replied that he had been too busy and he usually
spends two weeks to a nonth in the spring doing that.

CHAIR HUGA NS said several constituents have contacted his
of fice concerned that there may be a restriction on peopl e being
able to pick up antlers in sonme state controlled areas, and a
| ot of people don’'t necessarily support that.

MR. BRADLEY replied there are.
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked himto keep that on his radar screen

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked him describe his acadeni ¢ background
in the areas of biology and wildlife managenent.

MR. BRADLEY answered that he has a minor degree in biology from
the University of Oegon, and while he doesn't have a forma
sci ence background, he has learned a lot just through hunting
and being around the state. He said all hunters should be
concerned about conservation of habitat, bull/cow ratios and
birth and survival of yearlings.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 10- March 17, 2008



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what types of evidence should be
presented to the board to denonstrate a need for intensive gane
managenent .

4:29:17 PM

MR. BRADLEY answered they have to show that how many aninmals are
in the area; for instance, bull/cow ratios should be 40/100.
They like to have high calving nunbers and yearling survival
Wen these ratios go down and there aren’t enough animals for
subsi stence, then you have to |ook at what is causing the
decline. If the predator ratio with bears or wolves is up, you
m ght try to change that.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if scientific principles should be
used in determning intensive managenent.

MR. BRADLEY answered yes, but ADF&G needs the budget to do the
sci ence.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he has any reservations regarding
current predator control.

MR. BRADLEY answered no, but predators are an inportant part of
the equation and you have to nmake sure it's done properly and
you don't overdo it.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he has an opinion on rural versus
ur ban preference.

MR. BRADLEY answered that people who live adjacent to the big
gane shoul d have sone priority if game nunbers are down.

4:34: 32 PM
CHAIR HUGE NS asked if he wanted to highlight anything that
surprised himor that he | earned at the board neeting.

MR. BRADLEY replied that he was surprised at the anmount and
t horoughness of the information that was given out at the
nmeet i ngs.

4:36: 48 PM
CHAIR HUGEA NS asked if the commttee should be aware of any
speci al conflicts.

MR. BRADLEY replied that he hadn’t been on the board |ong
enough. The Defenders of WIldlife asked him if he was for

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- March 17, 2008



predator control and he answered yes when populations are
depressed. He stated his position is that:

W re all defenders of wildlife; we're just defending,
maybe, different groups. W' re not just defending the
ungul ates for prey populations to eat. If you nanage
for high populations, then they can wthstand nore
predators. If you let it go a natural cycle |ike they
are indicating, then you end wup wth predators
eventually wll knock their populations down and then
a lot of the predators may die off from starvation. So
you’' ve got a natural cycle; they go up and down and no
one wins except for — well, actually no one does. But
if you keep it at a balanced level, then to ne
everybody wi ns.

The person he was talking to about this issue said he couldn't
support him for the board because of his position on predator
control

4:38:43 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he sees anything the board should
do differently.

MR. BRADLEY replied that since 80 percent of the funding cane
from out of state hunting licenses, he didn't know what the
solution would be. Maybe sone people could pay nore for |icenses
especially conpared to other states and they could also put nore
people in the field to hel p manage t he ani nal s.

MR. BRADLEY also suggested that bears and wolves should be
managed the same as the ungul ates, because sonetines people want
to take a bear or a wolf once in their lifetine. There used to
be an unlimted supply of animals, but now there isn't. Unit 14
C becane a park and eventually went to a permt and now Unit 14
A has 38 guides and it just can’'t stand the pressure. Hunters
get forced into smaller and smaller areas and Tal keetna sheep
are already depressed. Maybe the state is headed towards a
permt system statewide. If that’s the case, a lot of decisions
will have to be made. “But the nunber-one priority has to be the
animal s and whatever it takes to keep them around forever.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what the primary limting factors
affecting wildlife population in areas 13 B are (d ennal |l en).

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- March 17, 2008



MR. BRADLEY replied in Alaska it’s usually nostly weather and
then predators, both nen and wild predators; to a smaller degree
it’s the habitat and the avail abl e browse.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if too many big ganme hunters from
outside are allowed in.

MR. BRADLEY answered vyes; he thought that guides should be
residents because they feel nore responsibility towards the
state. Qutside guides cone up here for a couple nonths, take a
| ot of gane even bringing up outside assistant guides and then
they leave the state and take the nobney with them They also
don't feel the same kind of stewardship of the land that
resident guides do. He definitely wanted to see sone changes
t here.

4:44:. 44 PM
SENATOR GREEN t hanked him and hoped he felt the sane one year
from now. She asked who he repl aced.

MR. BRADLEY answered M. Sonerville's seat.

4:45:15 PM

CRAIG L. FLEENER, nomnee for the Board of Game, said he is
originally from Fort Yukon and is currently living in Anchorage
to finish up his masters degree in Anchorage that he started in
1999.

MR. FLEENER said he served from 1986-1990 in the Marines, joined
the National Guard in 1991 and is still serving. He has worked
mostly in natural resources type | obs. He has been an
environnmental coordinator and a natural resources nanager; he
has done subsistence surveys and fisheries work in the Yukon
Flats. He was the regional wildlife biologist for the Counsel of
At habascan Tri bal CGovernnents with the 10 villages of the Yukon
Flats. He has served on a nunber of boards and comm ttees over
i ssues |ike sal non popul ation problens; he currently serves on a
commttee on bison. He served for about 10 years on the Eastern
Interior Federal Regional Subsistence Advisory Commttee wth
several years as chairman, but he had just resigned from that
posi tion.

SENATOR GREEN asked the chair if he had ever net M. Fl eener.

CHAIR HUGA NS replied that he had met himin this very building.
He has an astonishing |ist of acconplishnments.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 13- March 17, 2008



4: 48: 52 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked how he becane a nom nee.

MR. FLEENER replied that sone people out there kind of |ike him
One of his mpjor goals and partial acconplishnment in |life has
been bridging the gap between the indigenous comunity in Al aska
and the non-native community so they can work together to solve
problens that are common to everyone. Because of that he has
been seen as a person people can work with. He has friends who
serve in a nunber of different capacities including the
environmental community, the Native community and the Qutdoor
Council. Several folks put his nane forward and then the
Governor called him

CHAIR HUGEA NS went specifically to a 2001 study that |ooked at
beaver dam influence on fish distribution in the Black River
drai nage and asked hi m what he found.

MR. FLEENER answered that it was not what he thought it would
be. He thought it would be an overwhel m ng display that beaver
dans are bad for whitefish, because they block access to and
from | akes, and he wanted to have them renoved. One of the
things they are trying to determne is where whitefish spawn and
while it's still a big question, one of the possibilities is
that they spawn in sone |akes. However, they found that
typically there are enough high water events throughout the year
to allow fish to go over the danms. A fish and gane biol ogi st
said these over flow events provided plenty of tinme for the fish
to actually get in and out.

On the other hand, he tries to incorporate know edge of |oca
people and his primary interest in doing the work was because
whitefish is an extrenely inportant subsistent food for folks in
the Yukon Flats and they were having a |lot of problens in
getting them They attribute it to the dans. One of the reasons
it was so inportant as a research topic is because traditionally
| ocal populations actually broke down the beaver dans to get
access to whitefish and that practice has fallen to the waysi de.

4:53: 37 PM
SENATOR STEVENS said his research papers are inpressive and
asked what his plans are after finishing his degree.

MR. FLEENER responded that he is unenpl oyed and has been doing a
l[ittle contract work to pay rent and tuition. He would prefer to
live in Fort Yukon, but he needs to look for work as well. He
expl ai ned, “Kind of the crazy thing about ny degree is that it’s

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- March 17, 2008



a degree in wildlife biology and for the last four or 'fivish'
years, |’ve done nore executive nmanagenent stuff.” So he m ght
need to get another degree in managenent.

CHAI R HUGGE NS sai d he was excited about him being on the board.

4:55:59 PM
SENATOR GREEN asked the secret behind his “fountain of youth.”

MR. FLEENER replied noose neat and Ki ng sal non.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked him what was the |argest nobose he had seen
on the hoof.

MR. FLEENER answered when he was doi ng nbose surveys he once saw
one with a 45-inch rack, but next to the three other nobose he
was standing next to his body was 300-400 pounds bi gger.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he nmet with M. Fleener a couple of
weeks ago and thought he was an extrenely inpressive person with
and i npressive resune.

4:57:56 PM

CHAI R HUGE NS announced that the commttee did not have tine to
get to the Board of Fisheries nom nations today, but they would
be taken up next week.

4:58: 09 PM

WADE WLLIS, 20-year resident of Al aska, said he nakes a |iving
in the tourism business and supported M. Fleener’s nom nation
He provides diversity to the board, scientific know edge and
under st andi ng of the conplex issues before the board.

He also reminded the commttee that the Board of Gane has been
mandated to represent all Al askans and presently it doesn’t have
di verse representation. Only 14 percent of the state buys

hunting licenses. Not one person on the board is a non
consunptive user in the arena of tourism however the tourism
industry is the largest enployer in this state - and they

certainly have a vested interest in their wldlife resources.
They bring nore noney into the state than any other industry
besides oil. He said, “I’m very disappointed that it seens that
this admnistration is going to continue to try to stack the
Board of Gane with a single user group — basically hunters and
trappers.”

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- March 17, 2008



MR WLLIS remarked that Senator Green was working to diversify
the Board of Fish, so he was asking them now to work to
diversify the Board of Gane, BUT and he didn't think M. Bradley
offered that diversity. Further, he said M. Bradley's few
classes in biology over 25 years ago and the fact that he is
witing a book and picks up horn doesn’'t give himthe ability to
understand and effectively deal with nultiple user group issues
on the Board of Gane.

He was also concerned that this conmmttee didn't ask any
guestions about wrking with the public intent on aerial
predatory control. In 2000 aerial predator control was passed
with the understanding that it would be done by ADF&G bi ol ogi sts
and using scientific information. In 2004, the record shows that
ADF&G advi sed the Board of Gane not to initiate predator control
progranms, but they did it anyhow - because the board has no
diversity. He enphasized again that the public has a vested
interest in non-consunptive uses.

SENATOR GREEN asked if he or anyone he knows applied to be on
t he Board of Gane.

MR WLLIS answered that he didn't know of anyone who had
applied, but he also knew that many of the nom nees hadn’'t
applied either, but it's not a case that no one wants to be on
the board. A lot of folks don't wunderstand the process of
getting there.

SENATOR GREEN said generally there are nore applicants for board
positions and generally people apply for nore than one board
and she asked himto share that information with his cohorts.

5:04:19 PM

SENATOR STEVENS said M. WIllis inplied that tourism outstrips
commercial fisheries for jobs and inpacts on the state and he
asked him to send him information that would show that’'s the
case.

MR. WLLIS said he woul d be happy to show him

5:05: 09 PM
BRUCE KNOWES, Chair, Susitna R ver Fish and Gane Advisory
Commttee, said he lived in WIllow He said the advisory

conmttees didn't get word that this hearing would be held today
and they weren’t able to get a consensus on how to vote on the
new appoi ntments. He asked themto work hard to get out the word
about these neetings.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 16- March 17, 2008



5:06: 20 PM

CHAIR HUGGA NS said the neeting was noticed |ast Thursday and
advertised in addition to that. “There is a process, but
sonetines it falls short and we’'ll make a very deliberate effort
to make sure you' re aware of it.”

5:06: 43 PM

PAUL SHADURA, Kenai/ Sol dotna Fish and Gane Advisory Conmttee
Kenai, supported M. Spraker’s nom nation saying he has shown
the public that he is steadfast in the support of nmanagenent
practices that have benefited all consunptive users within the
state; he is a true guardian of the resource.

5:07: 41 PM
STEVE RUNYAN, representing hinself, Wsilla, said M. Bradley
has great per sonal integrity regardless of his lack of

experience with any one user group. He spends a lot of time in
the field and can make good decisions. He has good history in
this state with foll owi ng gane popul ati ons.

Regarding the tourism interests, M. Runyan said, he did snow
machi ning and four-wheeling expeditions and the nunber-one
wildlife they viewed on these trips was noose. Therefore,
efforts by the Board of Ganme to increase levels of noose
popul ati on anywhere in the state benefits not only the hunters,
but those tourists who would like to view wldlife. WIf
sightings are extrenely rare even by experienced people in
tourism The animal the average tourist wants nost to see is
noose. There are nore people to see noose than there are hunters
to take them However, he thought M. WIIlis's interests are
very well served by the current Board of Gane. He was i npressed
with M. Fleener’s testinony and he would be a good addition.
M. Spraker has been doing a great job so he should be kept on.

5:11: 02 PM

RI CKY GEASE, representing hinself, supported M. Spraker. M.
Cease said he is also the executive director of the Kenai River
Sport Fishing Association. He had nmany interactions with M.
Spraker as the museum manager and the executive director of the
Kenai Visitors and Cultural Center in Kenai and found him a
strong advocate of professional wldlife nanagenent in Al aska.
He thought his years of service in the departnment brought a good
expertise to the board and provided and excell ent perspective.

In regards to the two new appointnments, he said that after
listening to their testinony today, he would support both of

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- March 17, 2008



them M. Fleener has experience on the eastern Interior
subsi stence board, which brings good experience to the board
process.

MR. CGEASE said on the tourism issue, that he was the executive
director of the Kenai Convention and Visitor Bureau for a couple
of years and worked with it for six years. He pointed out that
bot h consunptive and non-consunptive users are inportant. A |ot
of state revenues cone through the wildlife tours and marine
tours out of the Kenai Fjords, specifically. Wale watching and
birding opportunities are great for the non consunptive users
But the nunber-one nmanner in which revenues are generated
outside of organized tours is through consunptive use. However
gane tours wth guides generate |arge incones and those get
distributed throughout all portions of the state along wth
sport fishing.

5:13: 58 PM

GARY HOLLIER, representing hinself, Soldotna, supported M.
Spraker for reconfirmation. He said in the late 70s it was hard
to get a nobose and soneone with vision put in a spike for 50
inch regulation in the md-80s and now they have a 30-day
season. M. Spraker was instrunental with that and had the
foresight to do sonmething positive for the resource and the
people. If it wasn’'t for him they would probably be down to
four or five-day seasons.

CHAIR HUGE NS, finding no further testinony, closed public
testinmony. He read the Senate Confirmation Comrittee report
sayi ng t he Senat e Resour ces Comm ttee recommends t he
appoi ntnents be forwarded to a joint session for consideration

This didn't reflect any intent by any of the nenbers to vote for
or against the confirmation of the individuals during any
further sessions. Conmttee nenbers signed the forwarding
letters.

There being no further business to conme before the committee
Chair Huggins adjourned the neeting at 5:17:45 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 17, 2008



